
Sierra County Commission 
Sierra County Commission Chambers 

1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Tuesday, March 18th, 2025 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO MEETING VIA: 
(http://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897) 

(https://www.youtube.com/@SierraCountyCommission) 
 

Call to Order: 10:00 AM Regular Meeting 
 
Roll Call: Travis Day-Chairman   Amy Whitehead-Clerk 
  James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair   Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
  Hank Hopkins-Commissioner  Amber Vaughn-County Manager 
 
Pledge Of Allegiance 
 
New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures.  
 
 Introduction of Guests  
 

I. Approval of Agenda: 
II. Approval of Minutes: 

A. Regular Meeting – February 18th, 2025 
III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes 
IV. Consent Agenda: 

A. Resolution No. 2025-21 Accounts Payable  
B. Resolution No. 2025-22 Indigent Claims 
C. Indigent Burial B2025-006 
D. Indigent Burial B2025-007 

V. Presentations/reports: 
A. Years of Service Awards  
B. Department Reports   

VI. Board of Finance: 
A. February Reconciliation 

VII. Old Business: 
VIII. New Business: 
IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurements: 

A. Mutual Aid for Fire and Rescue and Emergency Medical Services Agreement 
B. Agreement Between the County of Sierra, Bartoo Sand & Gravel, and Holly Asphalt  
C. Agreement Between Pictrometry and The County of Sierra   
D. Agreement Between BRINC Drones and The County of Sierra  

X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations: 
A. Resolution No. 2025-23 Sierra County Road Miles 2025  



B. Resolution No. 2025-24 Transferring the Balance of CLLA Funding and Operations 
from Sierra County to Catron County  

C. Resolution No. 2025-25 Transferring Sierra County Road A-013 To The New Mexico 
Department of Transportation  

D. Resolution No. 2025-26 Requesting a Conservation Pool at Elephant Butte Lake 
E. Resolution No. 2025-27 Establish Fees Pursuant to the New Mexico Records Act  
F. Resolution No. 2025-28 Reappointing two Members to the Sierra Vista Hospital 

Governing Board  
G. Resolution No. 2025-29 Budget Adjustment  
H. Proclaiming March 25th to Be Turtleback Mountain Golf & Resort Day in Sierra County  

XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H) : 
A. State Land Office/Spaceport Lease  
Pending and Threatened Litigation : 
B. Tracy v. BoCC  
C. Coulter v. BoCC 

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session: 
A. Consideration of State Land Office/Spaceport Lease 

XIII. Adjourn 
 
 
 
Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, April 15th, 2025, at 10:00 AM. Items 
for the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 5:00pm 
on the Monday the week before the meeting. 
 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting, please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as 
possible.  Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible 
formats. Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format 
is needed. 

 

  



 

      
          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
        FEBRUARY 18, 2025 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting  
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, February 18, 2025, at the Sierra County 
Commission Chambers, 1712 N Date St, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair (Present by Phone) 
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Amy Whitehead 
          
 County Attorney: David Pato 
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
   
Monica Zepeda, Sandy Jones, Kayce Edwards, Josh Baker, Steve Mull-
Sentinel, Patrick Flores, Michelle Atwell, Travis Atwell, Ernie Armijo, Keith 
Whitney, Billy Neeley, Tony James, Tim Kuzdrowski, Ryan Williams 
             

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A. Regular Meeting-January 28, 2025 
 
 

 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
February 18, 2025 
Page 2   

 

 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the minutes as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 
 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A.  Resolution No. 2025-16 Accounts Payable 
 
B.  Resolution No. 2025-17 Indigent Claims 
 
C.  Indigent Burial B2025-004 
 
D. Indigent Burial B2025-005 
 
E. Claim of Exemption 25-001 (Chavez) 
 
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 
A.  Years of Service award 
B.  Department Reports 
C.  Flood Commissioner Report 
D.  ORC Presentation  
E. Planned Prescribed Fire and Update for the 2025 Fire Season by Tony 
James Forest Service 
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 
 

A.  January Reconciliation 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the April Reconciliation as 
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  
 
B. Approval of Suspense Fund Account for a Property Tax Refund Claim  
 
Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
February 18, 2025 
Page 3   

 

 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A: County Road Closure Request: Aerospace Test at and around the 

Spaceport 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the County Road Closure 

Request:  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion. Motion 
carries with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
     

IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT 
 
A.  Agreement between Holly Asphalt Co. and The County of Sierra 
   
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Agreement between Holly 

Asphalt Co. and The County of Sierra as presented.  Commission Vice Chair 
Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 
1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
B. MOU between Sierra County, City of T or C, City of Elephant Butte to 

share cost for high resolution Geo Aerial Imagery. 
 

Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve MOU as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
C. MOU Between The County of Sierra DWI Program and The NM 
Department of Finance and Administration.  
 
D. Statement of Assurances Local DWI Grant and Distribution Program 
 

   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve MOU and Statement of 
Assurances (C and D) as presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 
 

 
X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 

 
A.  Resolution No. 2025-18 Appointing Members of the Board of Registration 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
February 18, 2025 
Page 4   

 

Commission Vice Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-18  
as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
B.  Resolution No. 2025-19 Budget Adjustment 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 2025-19 as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
C.  Resolution 2025-20 Authorizing the County to Submit and Application to 
the Department of Finance to participate in the Local DWI Grant and 
Distribution Program.  
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution 2025-20 as 
presented.  Commission Vice Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 

Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   
 
            District 1 – Yes 
 District 2 – Yes 
 District 3 – Yes 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
 
             Tracy v. BoCC 
                                                             
             
       
             
 
            XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
February 18, 2025 
Page 5   

 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday March 18, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. at the Sierra 
County Commission Chambers 1712 N. Date Street  Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting. Commission Vice 
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
February 18, 2025 
Page 6   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 18th day of February 2025. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 

   
 



 
 

 
 

  

 

 

    
     

   
        

 
  

 

 

          
 

   

          
             

          

         

            

            

   

   

  

  

 

     

   



   

  

  

 
  
  

  

   
  

 

  
 

  
  

 

  

 

   

   
  

  

  

 

 

  
  

 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 





 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 



 
   

    

 
  

  
  

    

  

 

 

   
  
  

 
 

  
   

  

   
 

   
   

 
 

  

 

    

    
 

 



   
    

  
  
   

   

  
   

    
  

    

  

   

 
   

  

   
   

   
 

 
     

 



 

  
 

 

  
  

  
     

    

   
   

    

   

    
     

   

    

  
   

 

    
    

  

   

    

  

  

  
 

   









 





   
    

     
          

     
   

    
      

    
     

   
   

   
      

             
   

   

              



   
   

    

      
     

    
     

            

      
    
     

    
    
      

      

   
    

   
      



 



    
    
    
   

     
    
    

      
              

           
             

     
 

               
               

               
               

   
 

 
          

   

     
   

       



               

               
         

            

    
    
    

   
   

      

    

    

     
    

             
              

             

   
   



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 





 
 

 
 

 









 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



    



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



   



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 



    

  

 



  

  

  
  

    



 

  

  
  

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 



 



  

  
  

  
   

     

   

     

   

 

  

  
 

  

  
   

 

  

  

  
  

      

  
  

  

      
   

  
  

  

  



 

 



 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 



 
 



 







 
 

    

  
  

   

    

   

 
  
 

 

      

  
  
  

           

           

            

   
   

   

     

  

     

  





 

 







      

         
   
       

            

    
     

    

  

   

                   
      
     
     

   

     
   
           

      
      

             

 

    
    

    
    

    

   
   







   

    

    
   

   
    

    
    

                
               

             
               



 



 

  

 

  

 

    
 

   
  

  
 

   

 
   
   

      

  

   

  
   

   
   

  
   

    
  

     



 
 

 
 

 

 



 



 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
  

   
  

    

   

    



 







 
 

 

 



 



 



 



 

   

   

 

   

  

 

  
  

  

 
  

  



  

 

 

 

  

 
     

    
    

   
   

  

 

            
                

            
         

       

  

   
  

  

  

 
  

  

 
 

    

   

 
 

             
    



  

    

    

      

   

   

    

   

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

   



 

 

  
  

    
   

  

   
     
   
  
  

 

 

 

  



 

 

   
  

      

 

 

 
 

  
 

  
  

   
  

  

 

 

  

    



     

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

  
     

  

   
    

 
    

    

 

    

  
              

              
             

                
   

 

 
 

 

 
 



  
 

 
  

 

    
  

  

   

   

  

      

    
     

                    
                     

            

      

      

 
       

  

              
              

    
   

            

    

       

    

        

  

      

 

 

   

 

 

                   

    

 

 

    

 

  

 

 

  

  



  
       

    
    

    

        

   
 

          
        

         
           

             
       

           
  

          

        
    

          
        

          
         

           
        

          
   

        
          

       

              
     

      
          

          
           

        
         
       

      
         

          

      
      
        
         

         
      

        
     

   
      

     
      

        
        
          

          
      

         
         

         
          

       
          

      

          
        

         
        

     

        

           

        

  

     

  

    

      



   

 

    
  

     
    

     
   

  

           
              

            
             

          
            

             
              

 

             
            

  

   
  

    

 

 

         

         





   
   

   

 

  

 

 

   

    

   

   

    

              

                   

   

           

               

              

  

  

  

     

      

        

   

   
        



 

  

 

   
       

 

   
     

    

    

 
  

  

      
      

       
       

    
   

 

   

 

 
   

 
    

 
      

 



 
                

  

    

    

    

    

    



  

                  

     

   

     

   

 

 
 

  

   

      

 
   

  

 
  

  

 

 

 
 

 

  
     

  
   

 
  

  
   
    
   

  

 

  
 

 

  
   

   
  

   

    

 
  

  

  

   
   
  

 
 



 

       

 
 

  
  

 
     

  
  
  

     

  
  
  
  

     



   
         

     

   

     

   

 

 
 

  

   

    

   
  

 
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
 

  

   

   
 

   

    

 
 
  

   

  

   
      

  

 

  

  
    

  

   
  

  

  

   
    

    

  

 



   

 

 

 
  
  

 
     

  
  
  
  

     

  
   

  
  

     



  
         

     

  

     

 

   

 

 

  
   

   
  

 
  

  

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

   

   
  

   

    

 
 
  

  
    

   
    

  

 
 

  
       

  

   

  

   

  
   
    
       

  

 



 

 

 
  
  

 
     

  
   

  
  

     

  
  
  
  

     



  
        

     

   

     

 

   

 

 

 

  

   

   

 
   

  
 

  

  

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

  

  

   
  

   

    

 
 
  
  

  

     

    

  

 
 

  

     

  

   

  

  
 
   
    

    

  

 



   

                 

     

  

     

 
   

 

 
 

  

   
   

   
  

 

  

  

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  
  

   
  

   

    

 
  
  

   

     

      

  

 

  

  
    

  

   

  

    

 

   
   
   
  

 



 

 

 

  
  

 
      

  
  
  
  

      

  
  
  
  

     



       

 

 

 

  
  

 
       

  
  

 
  

        

  
  
  
  

     



     

 

  

 
   

     

   
   

 
  

 
   

    

 

    

  

                
                   

              
       

 

  

 

 

 

 
  

  

                
   

 
 

   



   

 

    
  

     
    

     
    

  

           
              

             
             

              
            
               

        

             
            

  

   
  

    

 

 

          

    





   
   

   

  

 
  

 

  

   

   

      

     

    

        

              

                   

   

           

               

              

  

   

 
         

   

  



  
        

    
    

   

           

 

          
        

         
          
             

       

          
  

          

      
    

          
        

            
         

         
 

 
       

          
   

       
        

        

               
     

      
          

          
            

        
       
       

  

      
        

          

      
      
        

         
         
             

     
   

      
      

      

        
        

          
          

      
        
         

        
          

       
          

      

   
      

           

       

  

   

 



























  

  

 
 

  
      

 

 
  

 
     

     

  

 
 

 

 

           
         

            

              

       

      

    

      
      
    
    

 

  

    

         
         

            



   

  
   

  
 

        

     

 

 
 

    

  

   

  

   

   

  



  
  

  
     

 

  

  

   

   

  

   

    

         

  
  
  

   

  

   



 

 

 

 
 

             
         

   

  

 
   

           

     

                  
              

             

                
        

  

              

             

        

          

                 

           
          

 



 

 

 

            

              
         

               
     

             

   

             

 

    

    

  

    

       

     

   

    

  

   

 

 

 

 
  

 
  

 
        

      

  
   



     

 
   

  

 

 
    
   

 

     

      

    

   

    

     

      

   

    

      

     

      

  

    

    

    

    

  

  

  

 
  

  

    

 
  

  

  

   
     
 
  

 



   

   

     

       

    

      

   

  
 

  

      

   

     

       

     

      

      

   
 

  
 

 
 

   

   
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  

   

 

 

 



   
  

 

     

       

  

      

    

     

      

   

  
 

  

      

     

      

    

     

      

    

  

  

   

 

 

  

 
  

 

 



   

 

  

    

       

   
    

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 
   
 
 

   

 

 

   

  

  
 

  
  



  
   

  
 

 
  

 

           

       

        
      

           

          

        
 

   

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

   

   

   

   

               
            

              

                 
    

        

         

               
              

    

 



 
 

 

         

                  

               
     

   

    

  
    

  

 

    
  

  
     

             
       

    
 

   



   
 

 

       

 

   

 

   

 
 

  

    

 
        

 
  

   

 







    

      

   
  

 

 
 

 
    
            

   

   

 

 

  

   

  

  

 
    

 

      
    

     

       

              

      

                   

 
     



   

   
  

 
    

  
    

                  
     

                    
               

        

 
                  

                 
                

   

                  
                  

                  
          

             

                 
                

                   
                 

                  
                  

                      
                  

   

         

  

                 
               

                 
    

                
              
      

               

                       
                    

                     
                  

                   

             

                    



    

   
  

 
    

                  
                     

    

                  
                  

                 
                

 

                     
               

               

                  
                   

                
               

               

                   
                   

          

               

                  
               

             
                
             

               
   

               
               

            

                  
                    

                     
             
                  

                  

              
        

    

                     



 
   

   
  

 
    

                     
                   
                   

           

                  
                 
                  

                
                   

     

           

                 
              

      

              
                

             
  

  

     
                

 

              

                    
                    

                    
                   

           

  
             

  
              

                  
            

      
                  

                    
                  

                      
    

   
                 

              



     

   
  

 
    

                  
                   

                    
                   

                     
                  

                  
                

   
                

                   
                  

              
                  

   

     
         

     
        

    
          



   

   
  

 
    

 

 
  

  
  
  

 
   

  
    

  
       

  

 

 
 

  
  

  

  

   
  

  
  
  

 

 
 

  
   

  
 

  

   

 
 

  

    
 

    
  

        
 

    
  

   
 

   
  

    
 

  
  



   

   
  

 
     

               
             

 

                   
           

             

     
              

                 
                 

                 
                

                 
          

                     
             

   

              
       

                      
                 

            

                  
                
                  

 

                       
  

    
               

                  
                   

            

                   
                   

      

 
                     



     

   
  

 
     

          

 
                  

                   
                      

                    
        

                    
                   

               
                  

                   

       

                   
                

  

 
                
              

                

  
             

                    
       

                  
     

                    
              

                   
                 

                
                 

                     

 

   
              



      

   
  

  
     

    
                  

                     
                 
      

                  
              

  
                   
                 

                 

    

   
               

                  
                 

                
     

               
                  
                

                 
                   

             

                  
                   

                  
                

 

                
                  

     

                    
  

 
                 

                   

                  
                   

            



   

   
  

 
    

 

     

             
          

   
     

 

  
  

 

           
           

 

          
   
        

               
                

                   
             

  

            
            

            
        

                 
              
             

             
             

            
             

           
            

  

     
 



   

   
  

 
    

  

  

    

            
             

   

               
             

   

           
             
             

              
            

                 
             

             
                

                
              

                  

              
             

            
                 
   

                 
              

              
               

              
       

                
               

                 
            
      

                

                



   

  

     

  

     

 

                 
            

             
 

                 
                

     

  
                    

                
               

               
                  

                 
                 

                
                    

                      
                 

                        
                     

                
                

                   
                 

               
                

                   

                  
            

      

                
            

   
  

 
    



      

   
  

 
    

 

              
                   

                  
      

  
                   

  

                   
         

     
 

  
     
    

     

              
                   

     

             
               
                   

                  
                   

                  
                       
    

                   
                  

                  
               

                   
                    
     

                  
                 

                

                

                        

                    
                   

                 

                     



    

   
  

 
     

 

                  
                 

                   

               

 
  

     

   

 
  

   

    
  

  
   

 

    

    
  

  
  
  

 

 

    
 

 

  
      

   

  
    

  
  

  
   

  
  

  
   

  

        
  
  

  
   

  
  
  

 

    



   

   
  

  
    

 

  
  

 

          

                 
 

      

       

             
               

               
                   

   

                
          

              
           

            
          

              
  

              
          

             
         

            

               

                 
        

           

   
                  

                    



   

   
  

  
    

 

               
                 

               

                  

 
       

      
  

   
    

    
   

  
     

      
      
     

    

 
                 

   

         

     

       
          

       
     

    
  

  
 

 
         

   
     

    
      

   

  
       

 

 

 
 



    

   
  

 
     

 

                      
                   

    
                      

  
               

                   
                 

               

             

 

     

    
                

         

     

       

       

       
                 

       
         

      
     

      
      

      
    

      
           

      
     



   
  

  
    

 

      
            

 
    

          
  

                   
               

              
                  

          
  

                  
                 

                   
                 

      
           

 

  

     

   

  

    

      

  

  

  

      
   

   

  

    

         

         

  
                

                

    

 



    

   
  

 
    

                 
                   

                 
                  

                  
   

                      
                   

                    
                     

  
                      

                  
                    

                 
                   

       

    
                     
         



    

   
  

 
     

 
    

   
    

    
 

   
  

    
 

  
  

     

 
  

  

    
 

  
   

    
 

    

   

    
 

  
   



   

 
    

   
    

  
   

  

  
   

  

  
    

  

  
   
   

  
    

   

  
  

   

   
  

 
    

     

 



       

   
  

 
     

         
      

         
 
         
      

 
          
 
         
      

         
 
         
      

         
 
         
      

        

         
 
         
      

         
 

 
         
      

        
 



   

   
  

 
     

         
      

         
 

 
         
      

         

 
         

       

 

        
       

    

 
         

        

 

       
       

    
          

       

         

       
     

 
         

       

 

        
       

    
          

       



Notices. 

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first class or certified, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows: 

 

To: County of Sierra 

1712 N. Date Street Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 

 

To the Contractor:   
 
Holly Asphalt Company 

Brad Schmitz 
(505) 344-3526 
PO Box 26743 
Albuquerque, NM 87125 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date of 
signature by the County Chief Procurement Officer below: 

 

 

By: ______________________________________ Date: __________________ 
          Amber Vaughn, County Manager  

 

 

 

  



 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PASSED on this [DAY] day of [MONTH, YEAR]. 
______________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Commissioner Chair 

 

______________________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Vice- Chair 

 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 

 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead 
Sierra County Clerk 
 

 

 

Sierra County Chief Procurement Officer: 

 

By: ___________________________________ Date: _________________ 
      Isaac Rivers, Chief Procurement Officer 
 

 

 



     

   
 

 

  
    

 

 
 

 
     

     

  
    

 

 

        

              
            

             
             

             
                 

         

             
           

     
      
      

      

  

    

 
 

 



 

  
  

  
     

    

  

  

    

 

       

              

     

  

 

  



 

  
    

 
 

     

 
    

                    

                  
      

         

 
 

    

 
     



 
  

   
  

 
 

  
 

    

 

 

  
 
  
  

  

   

    

       

    

         

    

   
    

  

          
      

    
      

      
        

         
     

  



 
    

   

       
   

      
      
      
   

     
     

                
                
                    

                  
                  

           

                 
                  

             
                  

                  

  
     
    
   

  

  
   

   
  

      

                    
                
                

          

                      
                     

                 
                      

        

                  
           

             

          
                

                      

                  

    

            

     



                
                   

                    
                     

                    
                

              
              
                  

                 

                   
                     

                    
                 

                
              

    
  

 

  
 

 

 
  

 
 

    

         

                     

                       
                

      



      

  
   

   

 

 
  

   
      

    
 

 

  
  

     
   
 

  

    

 
   

 
          

     
        

       
     

     

    
    

 

    

  
  

 

 

         
           

      
       

      
    

  

          
      

       
         

     
       

        
         

      
       

     

   

 
  
 

  

  
 

 

            
          

      

        

     
     

  
  

 

        



      
        

     
    

 
   

 
    

 
        

        
    

       
       

      
         

         
       

         
         

       
       

      
        

       
         

     
       

        

       
  

  
 

 

        
         

       
       

      
        

  

     

 
 

    

  
 

 

        
         

     
      

         
      

         
        

       
       

    

     
  

   
 

 

        



  
 

       
      
      

  

     

 

  
  

  

       
         
           

        
       

        
       

        
        
     

     

 

   
 

          
     

        
        

     
    

      
   

 

    

 
  

 

 

         
          

      
      

       
    

   

 
 

 
  

  
  

     

       
       

        
     
       

     
        

     
       
  

 
      

        
         

     
    

    
   

     

  
   

          

 



   
     

      

    
       

    
  

              
      
       

      

  

           
       

       
        

     
       

         
        

       
       

     
   

 
   

   
 

  
 

 

  
 

     
         

     
       
        

      
         

        

        
       

    

      
  

  
  

 

  
 

       
       
       

  

     

  

  
   

  

        
        
           

          
       

        
       

        
      
       

     

  

                



            
          

       
       

     
      

       
       

      
    

   

  
 

  

           
       

        
       

      
      

  

     

 
 

    

   

         
        

      
       
      

       
         

         
       

        
         

        
       

      
        

       

        
     

       
       

      
  

  
 

 

   

      
         

      
        

       
      

      
       

  
  

 

        



        
  

      
  

            

             

   
                  

                     
                       

                       
   

         
                    
               
                

      
           
                 
                           

                   

 
                    

  
  

 
                    

  
  

  
                      

                       
                       

                   

                       

                             
                    

      

 

    
      
     
 

 

    
      

      

 

   



     
  

    
                   

                      
                   

                      
                      

        

         

        

        

                    

           

                        
                      

                      
   

                     
                   

            



  
  

    

                        
                       

                    

 

                  
                         

                            
       

                        
 

                 
                 

 

             

       

                 
        
           

                   
   

                    
                 

     
                     

                     

                         
   

                   
                    
                       
               
                        

                        

      

    

                      

                          

         
                    

                    
                       

                      

 
                       

                       
                  

    

            
 

           

                         
         

                          
                      

            

  

     
 

                  

       



                    
                          
                     

                      
                   

                     
                         
                         

                         
                  

        

      

                     
                         

           
                      

              
            

             
                        

                       
     

   

                       
                       

      
                       

   

       

            



  

                      
                        

                      
                  

        

                        
                          

                         
                       

               
       
                         

                 
                      
                         

                 
                      
                   
                       

                   
     

        
                      

                  

                          
                       

                  

   

                     
                    

                       
                        
                       

                        
                      

                     
                    

                      

    
                           

                    

 

                       

    
                             

                 

                     

               

                     

                

                        

                      
       

                     
        

                     
          

                           

                   

                          

 
                      

              

 

        

  
   



                           
        

                   
               

            

   

                            
                         

                         

                         
                    

                       
              

                
                  

                
                 

                   
   

                   
           

                
                

              
            

  
         

                           
                  

                         
                      

                      
                      

               

                         
                          

                       

                        

                    

 

        

                           

                       
                    

                      

                      
                   

                     

                      

                   

            

                     

                       

    
                        

                            

                      
    

                         

                  
                       

                  

                   
 

 

                       

                       

                         
                          



                        
                   

                               
                       

                     
                          

                
                          

                    
                        

          

       

      



  
   

  

                     
                        

                    

 

       
                              

                   
                     

                        
                        

                       
                      
                  
                        

                       
                           

                      

     
                          

                          
                          

                    
                      

                
             

                       
     

                           
                    

 
                         

    
                            

                   
                       

                 
                      

                   

                        
                     

          
                         

       
                         

            
                       

                         
                         

                       
                 

  
                            

      
                      

               

            

   
                        

                        

                          
                       

       



                        
                     

                   

                     
                

                   
                

                
                   

     
                  

           
           

 
     

                
                 

           
     

        
                         

                   
                         

                        
                      
                      

                    
    

                        
                      

                         
                       

     
                    

 
                         

                   
                        

                     
                    

                    
                      

                 
               

                         
                  

                         

                         
      

                        
                    

                         
                     

                         
                   

                         
                       

                         

                       

                      
                           

                          

                      

                          

                 
                        

                    

                          
           

       

         



  
 

 

             
                     

       

                   
                          

    

                 
                     

                              
                     

                      
                           

         

                       
                     

                        
                          
    

                 
                  

             
               
               

               
          

              
             

                 
               

                   
                  

                   
                  

                   
                     

    

                         
                     

                     
                        

                       
                        
                 

                 
                        

        

                          

                        

                   

                       

                         

                     
                 

           



                   
                           

                         
                           

                     
                 

                   
                        

    

                            

                        
                          

                       
           

                     
                     

                      
                        

    

         



    

                 
                    

                     
      

                  
                   

                   
                     

                      
 

                   
                  

                 
    

    
                     

                     
                  

             

                      
                      
                  

                           
                

                     
                    

              

                      
                  

            
                  

                  
                      

                  

                   
                 

                  
                   

  

                      
                  

                     
              

                  
        

                   
                 

                      
                   

       



                 
                    

   

                    
             

                   
                     

                      
                   

                      
      

                   
       

                    
   

     

       



   

  

 

               

          
        
     

 

 
        
        

 

          

 

        
        

          

 
  

  

 

  

          

  
        

  

       

 
  

 

      

            

            
       

              

 

          
        

  

 

 



    

   

     



      
               
         

 

            
             

          
 

             
        

              
          

    

             
            

           
          

         
   

          
             

            
 

           
         

  

      



            
             

              
            

             
         

  

  

 

           

            
        

          
            

            
      
          

           
        

            
           

   
           

           
   

            
            

       
           

         
  

            
           

          
     

         

  



 

            
                 

         

     

            

             
              
 

 

              
         

            

             

            

              
             

     

  

             
     



         
           

           
             

    

   

              
             

             
              
            

               
              

              
            

             
     

    

          
              

           
              

           

  

             
             

              
              

              

            

           

   

  

 



     

       

  
   
    

    

       
       

   

    
      

      

     

  

            
   

 

         

  



          
        

          

      

     

  

  
  

    

   

   
 

    

   

           



         

   

  



     

 

 

      
            

       

           

             

             

   

             

           

 

  
    
  

    
     

 

 

 
 

 

 

    
    
     

    

  

  



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SIERRA AND BRINC DRONES 

 
March 18, 2025 
 
Dear Commissioners: 
 
 The Sheriff’s Department is requesting the following purchase of a LEMUR 2 drone from 
BRINC Drones designed for complex indoor environments. This purchase would support a 
number of high-risk situations by providing real-time floor plans and video, live transcriptions 
and translations and additional data insights.   
 
 While BRINC Drones are the sole provider of the LEMUR 2 drones, they offer unlimited 
repair/replacement as well as hardware upgrades and training every two years. This purchase 
will utilize LEPF funding, and prices set by Statewide Pricing Agreement CTR074456 in Arizona.  
 
 
Cost: 

Year 1:  $19,999.00 
Year 2: $19,999.00 
Year 3:  $19,999.00 
Additional Supplies: $719.40 

TOTAL: $60,716.40 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully, 
Isaac Rivers, Chief Procurement Officer 
 
 
Notes:  Approved:  Date:    
 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Amy Whitehead 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

Thomas Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

 

 
 
 

Travis Day,   
 Commission Chair 

575-894-6215 

James E. Paxon, 
Commission Vice-Chair 

575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215  

Joshua Baker 
Sheriff 

575-894-9150 

Amber Vaughn 
County Manager 

575-894-6215 
1712 N Date St. Suite D 

Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 
 





























































Notices. 

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first class or certified, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows: 

 

To: County of Sierra 

1712 N. Date Street Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 

 

To the Contractor:   
 
BRINC Drones 
 
Conor Hearn 
(310) 743-4902 
Conor.Hearn@brincdrones.com 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date of 
signature by the County Chief Procurement Officer below: 

 

 

By: ______________________________________ Date: __________________ 
          Amber Vaughn, County Manager  

 

 

 

  



 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PASSED on this [DAY] day of [MONTH, YEAR]. 
______________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Commissioner Chair 

 

______________________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Vice- Chair 

 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 

 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead 
Sierra County Clerk 
 

 

 

Sierra County Chief Procurement Officer: 

 

By: ___________________________________ Date: _________________ 
      Isaac Rivers, Chief Procurement Officer 
 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Resolution No. 2025-23 
 Sierra County Road Miles 2025  

 
 
WHEREAS, Sierra County Board of Commissioners are required each year, by Section 66-6-23 NMSA 1978, to 
certify the total maintained mileage for the county is 565.1, and: 
 
WHEREAS, this list must identify each of the public roads maintained by name, county route numbers, beginning 
route description, ending route description and mileage of each route, and: 
 
WHEREAS, all certifications and maps must be submitted no later than April 1st of each year, now 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That Sierra County Commission meeting in regular session March 15, 
2022, submits the attached road mileage list which includes a map of the locations. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of March, 2025. 
       
 

Board of County Commissioners  
 

 
      _________________________________  
      Jim Paxon, Commissioner 
 
 
Attest:      _________________________________  
      Travis Day, Commissioner 
 
 
_______________________________   _________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk   Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

          Amy Whitehead 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candice Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

 
Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-894-2840 

Jim Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn 
County Manager 

575-894-6215 voice 
575-894-9548 fax 

 
 

1712 N. Date St. Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 



















 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-24 

A RESOLUTION TRANSFERRING THE BALANCE OF COUNTY LIVESTOCK LOSS 
AUTHORITY FUNDING FROM SIERRA COUNTY TO CATRON COUNTY FOLLOWING 

THE AMENDMENT OF THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County met in a duly noticed, regular 
Commission meeting on March 18, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. in the Sierra County Administration Building, 
1712 North Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 

WHEREAS, Sierra County, Catron County, and Socorro County (collectively, "Counties") entered into 
a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) under the authority of the Joint Powers Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 11-
1-1 et seq., to establish a County Livestock Loss Authority (CLLA) to address economic impacts arising 
from the implementation of the Mexican Grey Wolf Recovery Program (MGWRP); and, 

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2025, the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) has approved 
an amendment to the JPA, shifting fiscal agent responsibility for the CLLA from Sierra County to 
Catron County; and, 

WHEREAS, the amended JPA divests Sierra County of the authority and responsibility to serve as 
fiscal agent for the CLLA, and vests that authority exclusively in Catron County; and,  

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the shift in fiscal agent responsibility, Sierra County seeks to transfer the 
remaining balance of CLLA funding to Catron County to ensure the continued administration of the 
program and the processing of outstanding and future CLLA claims; and, 

WHEREAS, Sierra County will comply with all applicable provisions of the Joint Powers Agreement, 
the Joint Powers Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 11-1-1 et seq., and any directives from the DFA in 
effectuating this transfer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County hereby authorizes the transfer the remaining CLLA funds under Sierra County’s administration 
to Catron County, in accordance with the amended Joint Powers Agreement and DFA approval; and, 



 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners of 
Sierra County directs County staff to take all necessary actions to facilitate the orderly and immediate 
transition of fiscal responsibilities to Catron County. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 18th day of March, 2025. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
__________________________________             ______________________________________ 
              Travis Day, Chairman                                   James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 

( 



 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-25 

A RESOLUTION TRANSFERRING SIERRA COUNTY ROAD A-013 TO THE NEW MEXICO 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND ACCEPTING DESIGNATED STATE ROADS INTO THE 

COUNTY ROAD SYSTEM FOR MAINTENANCE 

 
    WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County met in a duly noticed, 
regular Commission meeting on March 18, 2025, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County 
Administration Building, 1712 North Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and,  
   

WHEREAS, Sierra County is a body politic existing by and under the Constitution and 
Laws of the State of New Mexico; and 

WHEREAS, Doña Ana County and Sierra County formed the Spaceport America 
Regional Spaceport District (“District”) pursuant to the Regional Spaceport District Act, NMSA 
1978, Section 5-16-1 et seq., which statutes grant the District the power to, among other things, 
enter into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District and to construct, in 
connection with the New Mexico Spaceport Authority (“Spaceport Authority”), a regional 
spaceport within the boundaries of the District; and  

WHEREAS, the Spaceport Authority is an agency of the State of New Mexico created 
pursuant to the Spaceport Development Act, NMSA 1978, Section 58-31-2, et seq., and 
empowered to actively promote and assist public and private sector infrastructure development 
associated with Spaceport America and to initiate, develop, acquire, own, construct, maintain, 
and lease Spaceport-related projects; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-2-2 (1905), “[a]ll public highways, 
except such as are owned and operated by private corporations, and highways within the 
corporate limits of any incorporated city or town, shall be maintained and kept in repair by the 
respective counties in which they are located”; and 



 
 

WHEREAS, Sierra County Road A-013 is such a public highway that Sierra County has 
been required to maintain and keep in repair; and 

WHEREAS, Sierra County and the Spaceport Authority entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding to complete road improvements to Sierra County Road A-013, which was an 
unimproved public road running north from the end of Doña Ana County road E-070 where it 
intersects the Sierra County line, to Spaceport America, to facilitate the development of 
Spaceport America; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to this Memorandum of Understanding, Sierra County was to 
assume permanent road maintenance responsibility for the improvements to Sierra County Road 
A-013 upon written notice that Spaceport America infrastructure construction was complete and 
construction traffic on the County roads had ended; and 

WHEREAS, based on the remote location of Sierra County Road A-013, the interest of 
Spaceport America in ensuring that this road is maintained and kept in good repair, and the 
limited resources of Sierra County in achieving that task, it is in the best interest of Sierra County 
to transfer ownership and maintenance responsibility of Sierra County Road A-013 to the New 
Mexico Department of Transportation; and 

WHEREAS, in exchange for the transfer of Sierra County Road A-013, Sierra County 
will accept the transfer of designated state roads from the New Mexico Department of 
Transportation into the County road system for maintenance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of 
Sierra County, New Mexico, that Sierra County Road A-013, in its entirety, is hereby transferred 
to the New Mexico Department of Transportation, which shall assume ownership and 
maintenance responsibility for the roadway. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Sierra County hereby accepts 
the transfer of designated state roads from the New Mexico Department of Transportation into 
the County road system for maintenance, as specified in the attached agreement and map labeled 
"Exhibit A." 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sierra County Manager 
and other appropriate County staff are authorized and directed to execute any necessary 
documents and take all necessary actions to effectuate the transfers described herein. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 18th day of March, 2025. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
 
___________________________________            __________________________________   
              Travis Day, Chairman                                   James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 
 

( 



 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-26 

 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A CONSERVATION POOL 

AT ELEPHANT BUTTE LAKE 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County met in a duly noticed, regular 
Commission meeting on March 18, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. in the Sierra County Administration Building, 
1712 North Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 

WHEREAS, Elephant Butte Dam, constructed in 1916 as part of the Rio Grande Project, was 
designed not only to regulate the floodwaters of the Rio Grande but also to provide a dependable 
water supply for agricultural irrigation during dry seasons; and, 

WHEREAS, Elephant Butte Lake spans 40 miles and boasts over 200 miles of shoreline, serving as a 
vital reservoir for water storage, recreation, and wildlife habitat; and, 

WHEREAS, the lake sustains a diverse fishery, including record-breaking bass, walleye, catfish, 
crappie, stripers, and numerous other species, contributing to a thriving recreational and ecological 
balance; and, 

WHEREAS, the presence of a healthy fish population supports a dynamic ecosystem that includes 
American white pelicans, western and Clark’s grebes, terns, shorebirds, and other avian species that 
depend on the lake’s resources; and, 

WHEREAS, excessive depletion of the lake disrupts critical fish spawning cycles, leading to 
diminished fish populations, altered aquatic vegetation, and cascading ecological consequences; and, 

WHEREAS, a conservation pool, maintained at a stable and sustainable level, would safeguard the 
lake’s biodiversity, ensuring the long-term viability of aquatic life and associated ecosystems; and, 

WHEREAS, a conservation pool is a pragmatic and widely acceptable solution that prioritizes both 
ecological integrity and water resource management; and, 



 
 

WHEREAS, a thriving lake enhances economic and recreational opportunities, supporting local 
businesses, marinas, tourism, and the quality of life for residents and visitors alike; and, 

WHEREAS, the establishment of a conservation pool at Elephant Butte Lake represents a forward-
thinking, scientifically sound, and economically beneficial approach to sustainable water 
management. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County that Elephant Butte Lake is an invaluable regional asset that provides recreational 
opportunities, water storage, and critical wildlife habitat, and that depletion of its water level has far-
reaching negative consequences. The Board urges the Bureau of Reclamation to take the lead in 
implementing a conservation pool at Elephant Butte Lake to ensure long-term ecological balance, 
economic sustainability, and the continued vitality of our community. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 18th day of March, 2025. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
__________________________________             ______________________________________ 
              Travis Day, Chairman                                   James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

( 



 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-27 

 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FEES PURSUANT TO THE NEW MEXICO 

RECORDING ACT 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County met in a duly noticed, regular 
Commission meeting on March 18, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. in the Sierra County Administration Building, 
1712 North Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Recording Act, NMSA 1978, Section 14-8-14 (2011), governs the 
County’s obligation to provide real property records, as affirmed by the New Mexico Court of 
Appeals in TexasFile LLC v. Bd. of County Commissioners of County of Lea, 2019-NMCA-038, ¶ 
14, 446 P.3d 1173, 1179, cert. denied (Aug. 8, 2019); and, 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 14-8-14 (2011), provides that records maintained in the office of 
the county clerk are available for search without charge during regular business hours; and, 

WHEREAS, this section further authorizes County Clerks to establish reasonable fees for conducting 
searches and for reproducing or copying records maintained in the office of the county clerk; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Clerk’s Office incurs costs associated with employee time required to 
conduct searches and provide real property records; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds it necessary and appropriate to establish a 
reasonable fee for such services in accordance with the New Mexico Recording Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of the County 
of Sierra that: 

1.  The County Clerk shall charge a fee of Thirty-Five Dollars ($35.00) per hour for employee 
time spent conducting searches for real property records.   If a person requesting inspection 
would like a copy of a public record, a reasonable fee may be charged, as detailed in the list 
below. A receipt indicating that the fees have been paid for making copies of public records 
will be provided upon request to the person requesting the copies. 



 
 

 
Item One Side Page 
  
Photo Copies $1.00 
Reader/Printer Copies $1.00 
18” x 24” Plats $4.00 
24” x 36” Plats $6.00 
36” Plus Plats $1.00 for each additional 

foot 
Electronic Data $0.35/CD, actual cost to the 

County for USB, or free 
Google link 

2. Requestors may search for records in the Clerk’s Office free of charge during regular business 
hours. 

3. The County Clerk’s Office may require advance payment of fees before conducting searches 
or providing copies of requested records. 

4. Any excess funds paid by the requestor shall be refunded. If the actual cost exceeds the 
estimated amount, an additional cost estimate will be provided before further work is 
undertaken. 

5. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 18th day of March, 2025. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
__________________________________             ______________________________________ 
              Travis Day, Chairman                                   James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

( 



 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-28 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING TWO MEMBERS TO THE SIERRA VISTA HOSPITAL 
GOVERNING BOARD 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County met in a duly noticed, regular 
Commission meeting on March 18, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. in the Sierra County Administration Building, 
1712 North Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 

WHEREAS, Sierra Vista Hospital serves as a critical healthcare provider for the residents of Sierra 
County and surrounding communities; and, 

WHEREAS, the hospital is governed by the Sierra Vista Hospital Governing Board, which provides 
oversight and strategic direction to ensure the hospital meets the healthcare needs of the community; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the terms of two current Sierra County-appointed members, Serina Bartoo and Shawnee 
R. Williams, have expired, and it is in the best interest of the county to reappoint them to ensure 
continuity and effective governance; and, 

WHEREAS, Serina Bartoo has demonstrated dedication and leadership in her service on the 
Governing Board, contributing to the advancement of healthcare services in Sierra County; and, 

WHEREAS, Shawnee R. Williams has provided valuable insight and experience in hospital 
governance, supporting the mission of Sierra Vista Hospital; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County that: 

1. Serina Bartoo is hereby reappointed to the Sierra Vista Hospital Governing Board, 
representing Sierra County, for a term commencing on June 1, 2025, and expiring on May 31, 
2028. 



 
 

2. Shawnee R. Williams is hereby reappointed to the Sierra Vista Hospital Governing Board, 
representing Sierra County, for a term commencing on June 1, 2025, and expiring on May 31, 
2028. 

3. The Board extends its appreciation to Serina Bartoo and Shawnee R. Williams for their 
continued commitment to the governance and success of Sierra Vista Hospital. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 18th day of March, 2025. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
__________________________________             ______________________________________ 
              Travis Day, Chairman                                   James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 

 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

( 





417-52-2182 NMDOT FY24-25 (CAP) 144,063 48,021 192,084 Approved match waiver $48,021 
604-85-2093 LE RETENTION STIPEND 37,500 -18,750 18,750 Adjusting budget to actuals 

500-08-2005 OVERTIME 0 55,000 55,000 
FY24 Stonegarden grant 
expenditure 

500-08-2007 FICA MATCH – 7.65% 0 4,208 4,208 
FY24 Stonegarden grant 
expenditure 

500-08-2109 TRAVEL/MILEAGE 0 16,126.90 16,126.90 
FY24 Stonegarden grant 
expenditure 

500-08-2330 EQUIPMENT 0 117,321.69 117,321.69 

Stonegarden grant FY23 balance, 
$78,226.69 and FY24 expenditure, 
$39,095 

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th DAY OF MARCH 2025. 
 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
  
 
    ____________________________ 
ATTEST:    TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
    ____________________________ 
    HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________ 
AMY WHITEHEAD, COUNTY CLERK  JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
SIERRA COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

PROCLAIMING MARCH 25TH, 2025, TO BE TURTLEBACK MOUNTAIN GOLF & 
RESORT DAY IN SIERRA COUNTY 

 
 
  WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, met in a regular 
meeting on March 18, 2025, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County Administration Office, 1712 N. 
Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Sierra exercises the 

powers of the County as a body politic and corporate pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-1 
(1884); and,  

 
WHEREAS, Turtleback Mountain Golf & Resort is making a monumental contribution 

to the economic vitality of Sierra County and the State of New Mexico, fostering growth, 
investment, and prosperity for the region; and 
 

WHEREAS, Turtleback Mountain Golf & Resort is creating hundreds of new jobs 
during the construction of more than 1,300 home sites and will continue generating employment 
opportunities throughout its long-term operations, strengthening the local economy for 
generations to come; and 
 

WHEREAS, Turtleback Mountain Golf & Resort is enhancing the active lifestyle of 
southern New Mexico by sponsoring the prestigious New Mexico Open Golf Tournament, 
bringing statewide recognition to Sierra County as a premier golf and recreation destination; and 
 

WHEREAS, the investment, development, and commitment demonstrated by Turtleback 
Mountain Golf & Resort contributes to the long-term economic, recreational, and community 
enrichment of Sierra County and its residents. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that we, the Sierra County Board of 
Commissioners, do hereby proclaim March 25, 2025, as TURTLEBACK MOUNTAIN GOLF 
& RESORT DAY in Sierra County and encourage all residents, businesses, and visitors to 
acknowledge and celebrate the profound impact of Turtleback Mountain Golf & Resort on our 
county’s future. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of 
Sierra County to be affixed this 18th day of March, 2025.  



 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 

 
        
      
Travis Day, Chairman 
      
        
 
             
Jim Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 
 
      
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
_____________________________      
Amy Whitehead, County Clerk 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 


